
    Pre-Agenda Session @ 5:30 p.m. 

 
A G E N D A 

City Council Meeting 
Monday, October 16, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 

 OPENING 
 Call to Order 

 Invocation   

 Pledge of Allegiance  

 Roll Call 

  

 

 FORMAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formal Public Comment – City Council Agenda Protocol 
 

The City of Garden City has identified this portion of the meeting to allow individuals an opportunity to formally 
address the City Council on issues of importance.  Garden City requires that individuals who desire to formally 
address the City Council submit a written request form outlining the subject matter that they intend to discuss so 
that they can be placed on the meeting agenda.  Members of the public desiring to be placed on the agenda to 
present or address matters to the City Council must submit a formal “REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON THE CITY 
COUNCIL AGENDA” form to the Office of the City Manager at least 10 days prior to the requested City Council 
meeting date that you wish to speak.  City Council meetings are held on the first and third Monday of each month 
so the request must be submitted no later than 5:00 pm on the Friday which constitutes 10 days prior.  The 
request can be done in person, regular mail, fax or e-mail and the speaker should obtain acknowledgement of the 
request from the City to demonstrate that the 10 day requirement has been met.  The request form may be 
obtained from the Office of the City Manager and on the City’s website www.gardencity-ga.gov.  The request 
should state the name of the individual(s) desiring to be heard and the subject matter to be presented to City 
Council.  Requests may be referred at the discretion of the City Manager, to appropriate staff for mediation prior 
to being placed on the public agenda.  Please be advised the completion of a request form does not entitle the 
speaker to be added to the agenda. 
 

http://www.gardencity-ga.gov/


 
 RECEIPT OF INFORMAL PUBLIC COMMENT  

 Procedure: To best manage this meeting section, any person who desires to address the City Council 
must sign up using the process outlined on the website where this meeting is advertised.  Once 
recognized by the Mayor, the person will be allowed to speak in accordance with the Informal Public 
Comment–Speaker Protocols outlined below.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Speaking to a Public Hearing Item Protocol 

In the interests of time and to ensure fairness of all persons who appear before the City Council to speak for or 
against a public hearing item, speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each to address City Council except as 
described herein.  One speaker for the Petitioner may address the City Council for no more than 10 minutes, 
unless extended by the Mayor.  In an effort help the City Council and the general public to better understand the 
issues, the Mayor may request that a City staff member address the City Council from the podium.  Speakers 
from the general public may only speak when recognized by the Mayor during the public hearing.  Speakers will 
be asked to come to the podium to address the City Council for three (3) minutes and they shall state their name 
and resident address for the record.   

Speakers addressing City Council on a public hearing item should coordinate comments to respect City Council’s 
time limits.  Groups should select a spokesperson to present the major points that summarize their position and 
opinions.  Speakers are urged to be brief and non-repetitive with their comments.  Comments shall specifically 
address the public hearing item before the City Council, and the speaker shall maintain appropriate tone and 
decorum when addressing the City Council.  City Council may ask questions of the applicant, speakers, or staff 
during these proceedings only for the purpose of clarifying information.  The speaker shall not direct derogatory 
comments to any individual, organization, or business.  At the conclusion of the three (3) minute time period, the 
speaker will be notified that his/her time has elapsed, and the next speaker will be recognized to come forward 
to the podium and address the City Council.  Once the public hearing is closed on an item, there will be no 
further opportunity for formal or informal public input at a City Council meeting. 
 



 
 

 

  

PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING PUBLIC HEARINGS ON PROPOSED ZONING DECISIONS BEFORE 
GARDEN CITY’S MAYOR AND COUNCIL AND STANDARDS GOVERNING THE EXERCISE OF  

CITY COUNCIL’S ZONING POWER 
 
Procedures for Conducting Public Hearings on Proposed Zoning Decisions: 
All public hearings conducted by the Mayor and Council on Garden City, Georgia, on proposed zoning decisions shall 
be conducted as follows: 

(1) All public hearings by the Mayor and Council on zoning amendments shall be chaired by the 
Mayor. 

(2) The Mayor shall open the hearing by stating the specific zoning amendment being considered 
at the public hearing and further stating that printed copies of the adopted standards 
governing the exercise of the Mayor and Council’s zoning power and the procedures 
governing the hearing are available to the public. 

(3) The Director of the City’s Planning and Zoning Department shall advise the Mayor and 
Council of the recommendation of the Planning Commission when applicable. 

(4) The Mayor shall determine the number of attendees who desire to testify or present evidence 
at the hearing. 

(5) When there is a large number of individuals wishing to testify at a hearing, the Mayor may 
invoke time limits on individual speakers.  In such cases, these time limits shall apply to all 
speakers.  Proponents, including the petitioner or the petitioner’s agent requesting the zoning 
decision, shall have no less than ten (10) minutes for the presentation of data, evidence, and 
expert opinions; opponents of the proposed decision shall have an equal minimum period of 
time.  The Mayor may grant additional time; provided, however, an equal period of time shall 
be granted both sides. 

(6) The petitioner requesting such zoning decision, or the applicant’s agent, shall be recognized 
first and shall be permitted to present and explain the request for the zoning decision.  
Thereafter, all individuals who so desire shall be permitted to speak in favor of the zoning 
decision. 

(7) After all individuals have had an opportunity to speak in accordance with subparagraph (6) 
above, those individuals present at the public hearing who wish to speak in opposition to the 
requested zoning decision shall have an opportunity to speak. 

(8) The Mayor may limit repetitious comments in the interest of time and may call for a show of 
hands of those persons present in favor of or opposed to the proposed decision. 

(9) It shall be the duty of the Mayor to maintain decorum and to assure the public hearing on the 
proposed decision is conducted in a fair and orderly manner. 

(10) Once all parties have concluded their testimony, the Mayor shall adjourn the public hearing. 
Standards Governing the Exercise of The Zoning Powers of Garden City’s Mayor and Council: 
Prior to making a zoning amendment, the Mayor and Council shall evaluate the merits of a proposed 
amendment according to the following criteria: 

(1) Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which would improve the pattern of 
uses in the general area? 

(2) Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing zoning or the pattern of 
development of the area? 

(3) Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses permissible under the zoning sought 
traverse established single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to congestion, 
noise, and traffic hazards? 

(4) Will this request place irreversible limitations or cause material detriment on the area 
similarly zoned as it is or on future plans for it? 

(5) Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property likely to be used for the use 
requested? 

(6) Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which would generate or accelerate 
adverse land use changes in the zone or neighborhood? 

 



 

 Approval of City Council Minutes   
 Consideration of the minutes from the October 2nd Pre-Agenda Session and City Council Minutes.   

 
  City Manager’s Report 
 Staff reports are included in the agenda packet 
 Updates and announcements 
 

 ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 Resolution – Property Acquisition Contract (95 Main Street): A resolution authorizing the City Manager 

to execute a sales contract on behalf of the City to purchase from Chapel-in-the-Gardens Presbyterian 
Church a certain parcel of land having an address of 95 Main Street for the intended future use of 
constructing a fire station.  
 

 Write-off of 2016 -2017 Utility Accounts Receivables Deemed Uncollectible:  Consideration by the Mayor 
and City Council of authorizing the write-off of the 2016-2017 utility accounts (bad debt) totaling 
$55,077.85 that staff has identified as outside of the statute of limitations of recovery (older than six 
years) and therefore deemed uncollectible.  
 
 

 ADJOURN  



  
PRE-AGENDA SESSION MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2023 1 

 

SYNOPSIS 
 

Pre-Agenda Session 
Monday, October 2, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 

 
Call to Order: Mayor Campbell called to order the meeting at approximately 5:30 p.m., and Mayor 
Campbell gave the invocation.  
 
Roll Call 
Council Members:  Mayor Bruce Campbell, Mayor Pro-tem Marcia Daniel, Councilmember Gwyn Hall, 
Councilmember Natalyn Morris, Councilmember Debbie Ruiz, and Councilmember Kim Tice.  Absent:  
Councilmember Richard Lassiter. 
 
Staff Members:  Scott Robider, City Manager; James P. Gerard, City Attorney; Rhonda Ferrell-Bowles, 
Finance Director/Clerk of Council; Gil Ballard, Chief of Police; and Captain Richard Hood, Police 
Department.  
 
Review of City Council Agenda Items:  The City Manager gave an overview of the items for consideration 
on the city council agenda.   
 
The City Manager gave an overview of the annexation petition made by Mark Turner to annex 5524 Silk 
Hope Road. He said Mr. Turner wants to complete the track so he can build an apartment complex with 
approximately 350 units.   The City Attorney noted that this vote tonight is just to accept the annexation 
petition to process.  The rezoning would have to go before the Planning Commission.  
 
Councilmember Daniel briefed the City Council on the Westside Coalition Meeting that she attended.  She 
said a lot of good information was shared at the meeting.  
 
Adjournment:  Given no other items to discuss, the Mayor and City Council unanimously adjourned the 
meeting at approximately 5:42 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Transcribed & submitted by:  The Clerk of Council 
Accepted & approved by:  The City Council 10/16/23 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2023 1 

 

M I N U T E S 
City Council Meeting 

Monday, October 2, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Call to Order: Mayor Campbell called to order the meeting at approximately 6:00 p.m. 
 
Opening:  Mayor Campbell gave the invocation and led the City Council in the pledge of allegiance to the 
flag.  
 
Roll Call 
Council Members:  Mayor Bruce Campbell, Mayor Pro-tem Marcia Daniel, Councilmember Gwyn Hall, 
Councilmember Natalyn Morris, Councilmember Debbie Ruiz, and Councilmember Kim Tice.  Absent:  
Councilmember Richard Lassiter. 
 
Staff Members:  Scott Robider, City Manager; James P. Gerard, City Attorney; Rhonda Ferrell-Bowles, 
Finance Director/Clerk of Council; Gil Ballard, Chief of Police; and Captain Richard Hood, Police 
Department.  
 
Informal Public Comment:  Mayor Campbell opened the floor to receive comments from the public.   
 
MonaLisa Monroe stated that she is confused about when the workshops are held.  Councilmember 
Morris said the workshops are held on the second Monday of the month.  Mayor Campbell noted that the 
city council meetings are held on the first and third Mondays of the month.  
 
City Council Minutes:  Councilmember Tice motioned to approve the minutes from the September 18th 
pre-agenda session, city council meeting, and the September 22nd special called city council meeting.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Daniel and passed without opposition.  
 
Mayor Campbell gave an update on the status of the new gym/recreation complex project.   
 
The City Manager stated that he had no updates or announcements to report.  
 
Items for Consideration 
Ordinance – Zoning Map Amendment (0 Silk Hope Road):  The Clerk of Council read the first reading of 
the heading of an ordinance to amend the zoning ordinance and map of Garden City, Georgia, as 
amended, to rezone certain property owned by Hana Abouharb at 0 Silk Hope Road, Garden City, Georgia, 
from its present zoning classification of “C-1” to a “C-2” zoning classification.  

Councilmember Hall made a motion to deny the zoning map amendment.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Daniel and passed without opposition.  

Annexation Petition:  Consideration of accepting for processing an annexation petition made by Mark 
Turner to annex 5524 Silk Hope Road, Savannah, Georgia, into Garden City.  

The City Attorney stated that the City Council will only vote to accept the petition to process.  He said 
there are several steps in the process that must be done.  He noted that the zoning would have to be 
considered through the City’s rezoning process.    



  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2023 2 

 

Councilmember Hall motioned to accept the petition for processing.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Tice and passed without opposition.  

Adjournment: With no other agenda items, Mayor Campbell called for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
Councilmember Ruiz motioned to adjourn the meeting at approximately 6:10 p.m.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Hall and passed without opposition. 

 

 

Transcribed & submitted by:  The Clerk of Council 
Accepted & approved by:  The City Council 10-18-23 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

  

 
  
 
 
TO:  THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
 
DATE:  October 6, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Fire Department September 2023 Report 
 
 
Report in Brief 
 
The Fire Department Monthly Status Report includes an extensive summary of the monthly 
activity of the divisions within the Department. This report also provides information regarding 
key items of interest and / or activities throughout the month. 
 
The operations detail contained in this report is for the month of September 2023 and all 
related information is current as of September 30, 2023. 
 
 
 
      Prepared by: Michele Johnson 
      Title  Assistant Fire Chief  
         
 
      Reviewed by: Mike Dick  
      Title  Chief of Fire 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Robider, City Manager 
 
 
Attachment(s) 

REPORT TO NOVEMBEROR AND CITY 
COUNCIL 
REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

Calls for Service in September 2023 

There was a total of 176 calls for service in the month of September 2023. 
 
 Current month’s calls included: 

Incident Type: 
 

Building fire 
Passenger vehicle fire 
Road freight or transport vehicle fire 
Brush/grass fire 
Dumpster/outside receptacle fire 
Outside equipment fire 

     1 
     2 
     2 
     1  
     1 
     1 

    First Responder 
Vehicle Accident 
Extrication 
Hazardous Incident 
Public Service Call 
Good Intent 
Fire Alarm 

107 
11 

1 
5 
6 

19 
19 

 
 

 

      

 

 

4.55%

60.80%
6.25%

0.57%

2.84%

3.41%

10.80%

10.80%

September 2023 Fire Service Calls

Fires

Rescue/First Responder

Vehicle Accident

Extrication

Hazardous Incident

Public Service Call

Good Intent

False Alarm



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

 
 
Department Training 
 
 
In September, fire personnel reported a total of 340 hours of training resulting in an average of 
11.72 hours of training per Firefighter and a total of 4,602 for the year.  
 
Blood draw training was held at Station 2 on September 5th, 6th, and 7th. All firefighters that 
have their EMT-I, A, and P were required to attend. 
 
GCFD hosted training at Station 2 with Atlanta Gas Light on September 26th. Personnel with 
both Garden City Fire and Atlanta Gas Light were in attendance to ensure everyone is working 
with the same response plans. 
 
Chief Dick and Deputy Chief Johnson participated in leadership training through GMA with 
other city staff at City Hall. This training occurred on 4 different days and each participant 
received a framed certificate if they attended them all.  
 
There was mutual aid training between GCFR, Port Wentworth Fire, and the 165th Airlift Wing 
during the month of September. 
 
GCFR staff conducted extrication training at LKQ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

 
 
Department Activities/Events 
 
 
Each shift did a walk-through of the Encore on the Green Apartments with Fire Marshal 
Nevarez. The Fire Marshal’s office conducts these walk-throughs so Fire Department staff are 
familiar with the floor plans and fire suppression systems of new developments. 
 
GCFD participated in Harris Lowry Manton Law Firm’s 10th Annual Fire Responder Appreciation 
Luncheon. Staff was able to pick up free meals and t-shirts to bring back to the stations for our 
firefighters.  
 
Utilizing the FEMA AFG grant, GCFR received 28 self-contained breathing apparatuses and the 
accompanying compressor. All personnel were trained in the use of the new equipment and it 
was placed in-service. 
Annual hose testing is in progress. GCFR had difficulty finding a parking lot large enough due to 
the stadium no longer being available. 
 
GCFR ordered the fire engine from Pierce Manufacturing that is to be delivered in the first 
quarter of 2024. 
 
 
Community Relations  
 
On September 15th, Station 2 hosted 22 Pre-K children from the Wesley Community Center. 
Firefighters on A-Shift gave the children a tour of the station, the fire truck and how it works, 
and showed them how they put on their gear. The children received goody bags that are 
firefighter themed as well as GCFD firefighter helmets.  
 
GCFD staff on A-Shift installed a smoke alarm on Bowman Avenue at a resident’s request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

 
 

Apparatus 
 

 
Apparatus Year/Make/Model Status 
Engine 21 2016 Pierce Pumper In service – cutters and holders repaired, 

wiring for light bar on top has been 
replaced 

Engine 22 2016 Pierce Pumper In service – oil leak repaired, head gasket 
replaced 

Engine 23 (Reserve 
22) 

2000 E-One Pumper In service – Load manager repaired, ABS 
module replaced  

Engine 24 (Service 21) 
Surplused 

1995 E-One Pumper Out of service – Needs a new 
transmission but unable to locate parts 
due to age of apparatus 

Tender 22 2015 Kenworth Tanker In service – air conditioning fixed, needs 
PM service 

Truck 22 (ladder) 2003 E-One Ladder Truck In service – Some parts received, 
remaining parts expected by the end of 
the month, should be sending ladder 
truck to Forsyth by November 
 
August update: Will be going to Forsyth 
once parts are received from E-One to 
replace cables, pulleys & slide pads as 
well as repair the check engine 
light/radiator sensor and ABS light, aerial 
ladder nozzle motor needs to be 
replaced, oil leak, due for provisional 
maintenance  

 

 

 

 



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

 

 

Fire Marshal 

For the month of September, the Fire Marshal’s Office focused on closing out all pending locations with 
fire violations that made progress. There was a total of 12 citations/subpoenas to appear to court. 
Deputy FM Roberts has been working with E911 and Chatham County Communications to ensure our 
radios and programs will be good to go. FM Nevarez will represent GC in the new addressing committee 
with SAGIS to correct and draft a county wide standard/policy for addresses in the city. FM Nevarez 
attended GPSTC as a lead instructor to teach a course to fire inspectors across the State. In October, 
GCFMO will start annual inspections on US-80 Highway and Dean Forest to conclude the year. 

Here’s the break down by Inspection Type and the Plan Reviews by project:  

Annual Inspection (initial inspection):                  02 
RE-Inspection:                  56                                                       
Certificate of Occupancy:                                                 11 
Consultation Site Visit:                                                01 
Fire Protection Equipment Inspection:                    04 
Pre-Plan                                                                               --    
Occupational Tax Certificate (new tenant):            04 
Total number of Inspections:                                    78 
 

Plan Review       

Encore on the Green Fire Alarm    4hrs  
1326 US-80 Hwy Building Plans    6hrs 
4415 Augusta Road Building Plans  5hrs  
27 Bryce Industrial Drive    4hrs  
1620 Dean Forest Final Review    4hrs  
Total:       19hrs 
 
Revenue Collected:       

Total Fees Collected:                                      $3,975.00 

 



                           
  

                                                                                                                              
 

Garden City Fire Marshal’s Office 
100 Central Avenue 

Garden City, GA 31405 

 

 

Looking Ahead 

 
 Pursuing the Firehouse Subs grant to obtain more turnout gear. 
 Upcoming training at the airport for aircraft disaster drill. 
 Upcoming training with Port Wentworth Fire, Bloomingdale Fire and 165th on aircraft 

fire and rescue. 
 Upcoming training on rope rescue.  
 Annual hose testing is upcoming. 
 Focusing on building maintenance in the stations to improve condition and appearance. 
 Continue progress on aggressive training schedule to bring all department personnel up 

to required standards. 
 Continue broadening the community outreach with continued programs such as 

community CPR classes, the smoke detector program, and Close Before you Doze. 



Elite chathamcounty Incident Type Report (Summary)  

Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 1 - Fire

111 - Building fire 1 0.57% 30,000.00 30,000.00 60,000.00 78.95%

131 - Passenger vehicle fire 2 1.14% 3,000.00 3,000.00 6,000.00 7.89%

132 - Road freight or transport vehicle
fire

2 1.14% 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 13.16%

142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture
fire

1 0.57%     

154 - Dumpster or other outside trash
receptacle fire

1 0.57% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

162 - Outside equipment fire 1 0.57% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

 Total:  8 Total:  4.55% Total: 
38,000.00

Total: 
38,000.00

Total: 
76,000.00

Total:  100.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 4 2.27%     

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle
accident with injury

103 58.52%     

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 8 4.55%     

323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident
(MV Ped)

1 0.57%     

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no
injuries.

2 1.14%     

352 - Extrication of victim(s) from vehicle 1 0.57%     

 Total:  119 Total:  67.61% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

411 - Gasoline or other flammable liquid
spill

1 0.57%     

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 1.14%     

442 - Overheated motor 1 0.57%     

444 - Power line down 1 0.57%     

 Total:  5 Total:  2.84% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 5 - Service Call

511 - Lock-out 1 0.57%     

553 - Public service 4 2.27%     

5537 - Smoke Alarm Install/Inspection 1 0.57%     

 Total:  6 Total:  3.41% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 6 - Good Intent Call

611 - Dispatched and cancelled en route 15 8.52%     

622 - No incident found on arrival at
dispatch address

2 1.14%     

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 2 1.14%     

 Total:  19 Total:  10.80% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 7 - False Alarm & False Call

733 - Smoke detector activation due to
malfunction

1 0.57%     

735 - Alarm system sounded due to
malfunction

2 1.14%     

740 - Unintentional transmission of alarm,
other

2 1.14%     

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire -
unintentional

1 0.57%     

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire -
unintentional

13 7.39%     

 Total:  19 Total:  10.80% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

 Total:  176 Total:  100.00% Total: 
38,000.00

Total: 
38,000.00

Total: 
76,000.00

Total:  100.00%

Printed On: 10/04/2023 02:26:56 PM1 of 1



 

 

  

 

TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL DATE:   October 10, 2023 

CT: Human Resources Department Report for September 2023 

Report in Brief 

Attached is the Human Resources Department’s Month-End Report for September.   

 

      Prepared by: Yolanda Irizarry 

      Title:  Human Resources Director 

 

 

      Reviewed by: ____________________________ 

      Title  ____________________________ 

 

 

____________________________ 

City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 



Garden City 
Human Resources Department 
September Month-End Report 

 
 

Recruitment/Positions Filled 
In addition to the continuous recruitment of Police Officers/Police Officer Recruits and Firefighters, the City has job 
opportunities for a Water and Sewer Repair Technician, Director of Public Works, Deputy Clerk of Court, and Police 
Records Clerk. 

 

New Hires 
There were three (3) new hires during the month of September. All three individuals were hired into the Police 
Department. One individual was hired as a Police Officer, the other two (2) individuals were hired as Police Officers 
Recruit.  
 

Promotions/Milestones 
There were two (2) promotions during the month of September. One of the promotions was at the Police Department, 
the individual was promoted to a Police Officer. The second promotion was at the Water and Sewer Operations 
Department, the individual was promoted to Water Operator Tech, Senior. 
 

Employment Terminations 
There was one (1) separation from employment; the individual was from the Fire Department.  
 

City Employment 
The City ends the month of September with 104 full-time employees.  

 

 

 

  



 

Additional Personnel Information Including Part-Time Employees 
 

This report normally covers the count for full- and part-time employees. Included in the count below for City 

employees is part-time regularly scheduled, temporary, part-time, casual/summer help (persons that have other 

employment and work as needed), along with full-time employees. 

 

 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 Employee Turnover Data Per Month 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Total Employees 119 

TOTAL EMPLOYEES: 114 

FULL-TIME ONLY: 104 

CONTRACTOR/TEMP: 0 

PART-TIME: 5 

PART-TIME/CASUAL -SEASONAL 5 

Month Percent 

January 0% 

February 4% 

March 1.9% 

April  1.9% 

May 1.9% 

June 2.9% 

July  0 % 

August 5% 

September 1% 

October % 

November % 

December % 

September 



Garden City Personnel Data 
New Hires – 2023 

 
 
   
 

   

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Job Title Hire Date 

Business License Specialist 2/13/2023 

Clerk of Court 3/9/2023 

Deputy Clerk of Court 3/14/2023 

Police Officer Recruit 3/21/2023 

Court Administrator 3/27/2023 

Firefighter 4/19/2023 

Firefighter 4/26/2023 

Firefighter 5/4/2023 

Police Officer 5/10/2023 

Clerk of Court 5/15/2023 

Police Officer 6/1/2023 

Police Officer Recruit (2) 6/5/2023 

Firefighter 7/5/2023 

Police Officer 9/5/2023 

Police Officer Recruit 9/5/2023 

Police Officer Recruit 9/11/2023 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



 
REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL     DATE: October 11th 2023 
SUBJECT: Parks & Recreation 2023 September Report 
Report in Brief 
The Parks & Recreation Monthly Status Report includes a summary of the monthly activities 
and projects of all divisions within the Department.  
The operations detail contained in this report is for the Month of September 2023 and all 
related information is current as of __October 11, 2023____. 

Parks & Recreation Department Status Report Summary - September 2023 

 Garden City 
Cheerleaders 
Celebrating recently 
after a GC Eagles 
youth football victory 
at a Garden City home 
game @ 402 Market 
Street. 



 
REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

  
Adult Programs Senior Center

  
Our Garden City Senior Citizens enjoying Bingo at the Senior Center.  
 

Sports Programs/Activities 
During the month of September, 150_ Youths participated in Garden City’s Parks and Rec Youth 
Programs.   
 Upcoming Sports Programs/Events  
 ….Garden City Youth Basketball sign-ups underway 

for more Info (912) 963-2731       or 966-7788 Ages 4-14, 
 sign up at 402 Market Street 9am – 5pm  www.gardencity-ga.gov  

   
  Garden City Eagles in action!                                      
 

 
 

We served 828 meals in 
September, averaging 44 
seniors a day.  

 
  October 26th 

group out to eat 
at Love’s. 
 

 October 31 lunch 
BOO-Bash at the 
GC senior center. 

  
 GC Senior trip is 

scheduled for 
Branson Missouri 
in November. 

 

Garden City Parks & Rec Youth Football 
league records so far: 

 6u 2-2, 
 8u 3-0  
 10u 3-1 

 
Football season ends mid-November 

http://www.gardencity-ga.gov/


 
REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

  
 

The graphs 
are visual 
summaries of 
the number of 
participants in 
Garden City’s 
Recreation 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Prepared by: _________Cliff Ducey________ 
Title  __Parks & Recreation Director 
 

           
      PARK & Rec 
402 Market Street 
          (912) 963-2731        

29

100

21 45

September Particpation

Open Gym Y Tackle Football Gymnastics Basketball

0

200

400

20
2…

Ja
n-

…
Fe

b-
…

M
ar

…
Ap

r-
…

M
ay

…
Ju

n-
…

Ju
l-2

3
Au

g…
Se

p-
…

O
ct

-…
N

ov
…

De
c…

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

Recreation Programs/Activities Participation 
Summary

September 2023



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  

  

 

 

TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL   DATE: October 2, 2023 

SUBJECT:   Planning and Economic Development Permitting and Inspections Monthly Status Report 

 

Report in Brief 

The Department of Planning and Economic Development Monthly Status Report includes a summary of 
the monthly activities and projects of permitting and inspections within the department. This report also 
provides information regarding key items of interest and/or activities throughout the month. 

The operations detail contained in this report is for September 2023 and all related information is 
current as of October 1, 2023. 

 

  Prepared by: Tonya Roper 
  Title                 Staff 
  
 Reviewed by: _____________________ 
 Title                 _____________________ 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Robider; City Manager  
 
 
Attachment(s) 
- Code Enforcement 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning and Economic Development Department 

 Status Report 

Summary – September 2023 

Permits 
There were 51 permits issued during the month.  They included: 

New Construction Building Permits 
 

Renovation/Expansion Building Permits  
 

Miscellaneous Permits  
 
The graph below is a visual summary of the permits issued. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

31 37 43 46 57 41 79 42 51

427

Permits Summary
Year End 2022 - September 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Inspections 
Inspections scheduled included: 
 13 Business License 
 20 Mechanical/Electrical/Plumbing 
 64 Building  
 06 Site (Property/Development/Preliminary/Demolition) 
 

Code Enforcement Activity 
 61 Courtesy Notice of Violations Issued 
 04 Signs 
 00 Sanitation Citations (Enforcement Ceased per CM) 
 92 Re-Inspections 
 67 Cases Closed (Compliance or Dismissed) 
 16 Vehicles Tagged Derelict or tagged for tow 
 00 Vehicles Towed 
 21 Vehicles Move by Owner or brought into compliance 
 03 Court Citations 
 09 Miscellaneous Inspections (Checking zoning, business license, permits) 
 00 Housing codes 
 00 Cease and Desist orders obtained 
 00 Warrants and Court Orders obtained 
 15 Properties that the City worked on (including cutting, cleaning, securing) and billed 
 00 Code Enforcement condemnations (placards posted – including unfit, unsecure, unsafe)  
 01 Stormwater Inspections 
 02 Stop Work Order Issues 

 

 Number of Permits 
  
2022 Year End 476 

Jan-23 31 
Feb-23 37 
Mar-23 43 
Apr-23 46 

May-23 57 
Jun-23 41 
Jul-23 79 

Aug-23 42 
Sep-23 51 
Oct-23  
Nov-23  
Dec-23  

2023 YTD                             427 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New Business Licenses Issued 
September 2023 

Name Address Business Type 

Royal Furniture & Rugs Outlet 5125 Augusta Road All other home furnishing 

Norman Quality Flooring LLC 192 Village Drive Flooring Contractors 

Home Enhancement Doctor 4125 6th Street Residential Remodeler 

M1 Shipping LLC 4896 Old Louisville Road Freight Transportation Arrangement 

 
 

 
 

 New Businesses 
  
2022 Year End 66 

Jan-23 8 
Feb-23 5 
Mar-23 12 
Apr-23 7 

May-23 9 
Jun-23 8 
Jul-23 4 

Aug-23 2 
Sep-23 4 
Oct-23  
Nov-23  
Dec-23  

2023 YTD                               59 

0

100

8 5 12 7 9 8 4 2 4

59

Business Licenses
Year End 2022 - September 2023



Memorandum 

To:  Scott Robider 

From: Benji Selph – Code Officer and Jonathan Trego – Planning Supervisor  

Date: October 1, 2023 

Re: Council Report 

The Code Enforcement Unit activity report for September 2023 is as follows: 

Signs- 04 

Sanitation Citations-00 

Courtesy Notices and Violation Notices- 61 

Re-inspections- 92 

Cases Closed (Compliance or dismissed)- 67 

Vehicles Tagged Derelict or tagged for tow- 16 

Vehicles Towed- 0 

Vehicles MBO or brought into compliance- 21 

Court Citations- 03 

Misc. Inspections (including zoning inspections, tax cert checks, permit checks, routine insps)- 09 

Housing Codes- 00 

Cease and Desist Orders obtained: 00 

Warrants and Court Orders obtained: 00 

Properties that the City worked on (including cutting, cleaning, securing) and billed- 15 

CE Condemnations (Placards posted- including for unfit, unsecure, unsafe): 00 

Stormwater Inspections (EPD): 01 

Stop Work Order Issues: 02 



REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL     AGENDA ITEM 

 

TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL   DATE:  10-13-2023 
 
SUBJECT: POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY STATUS REPORT 
 
 
Report in Brief 
 
The Police Department Monthly Status Report includes a summary of the monthly activities 
of the Department.  This report also provides information regarding key items of interest 
and/or activities throughout the month. 
 
The operations detail contained in this report is for the month of September 2023. 
 
    Prepared by: Jeri Varnum 
    Title:   Executive Assistant/Accreditation Manager  
 
 
    Reviewed by:  Gilbert C. Ballard     
    Title:    Chief of Police 
  
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scott Robider, City Manager 
 
 
Attachment(s) 
 

  

 

  



Police Department - September 2023 Status Report 
Calls for Service   
We have not received the calls for service from the Chatham County 911 Center for September 2023.  

Adult & Juvenile Arrest/Charge Summary   
Adult Arrests - 90 Juvenile Arrests - 0 
  
Offenses Assault   7 Burglary  3 Damage to Property 2  
  Embezzlement  1 Fraud    4 Kidnapping   1 
  Larceny  12 Motor Vehicle Theft 5 Narcotics  5 
  Sex Offense  3 Robbery  3 Stolen Property 2 
  Weapons Violation 3 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Current Month’s 
Criminal Violations by District 
 Daniel Ruiz Morris Lassiter, Jr. Tice 
 District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 
Assault 0 3 0 3  1  
Burglary 1 0 2 0  0 
Damage to Property 0 0 1 1  0 
Embezzlement 0 0 1 0  0 
Fraud 0 2 1 0  1 
Kidnapping 0 1 0 0  0 
Larceny 3 4 2 2  1 
MV Theft 0 2 1 1  1 
Narcotics 1 0 1 2  1 
Robbery 2 0 1 0  0 
Sex Offense 3 0 0 0  0 
Stolen Property 0 0 1 1  0 
Weapons Violation 0 0 1 1  1 



School Zone Violations   There were 186 citations issued for the school zone cameras on Kessler Avenue in 
September. A total of 634 citations have been issued for 2023.  
 
Traffic Violations   There were 1,427 traffic violations in September, 95 of which were commercial vehicle 
citations.  A total of 10,571 traffic violations have been written for 2023.  
  
Traffic Violations Issued  Speeding Violations     438 Fatalities   0 
    Seat Belt Violations  67 Written Warnings  205 
    DUI Citations   16     Miscellaneous Citations 701 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Accidents     
Total Accident Reports  66 
Public Roadway Accidents 51 Private Property Accidents 15 
 
Open Records Requests  The Garden City Records Department received and processed 229. Open Records 
requests for September.  A total of 2,367 Open Records Requests have been processed in 2023. 
 
Training  During the month of September 2023, police personnel reported a total of  329 hours of training. 
Some of the training classes the officers attended during the month were:  Specialized Patrol Techniques, 
Cloud Gavel Electronic Warrants, BolaWrap Operator Course, Drug Identification, Peace Officers Association 
of Georgia Seminar, and Command College- Leadership in Public Safety Administration.  
 
Items of Interest for September2023 

• Officer Scott represented the Garden City Police Department yesterday at the 200 Club’s Golf Event at 
The Club at Savannah Harbor on September 8th. All of the proceeds from the event go to support the 
200 Club and their mission supporting the families of our fallen first responders.  

• We acknowledged our female officer’s on September 12th for National Police Women’s Day. 
• On September 13th we enjoyed seeing hosting Cops at Bus Stops at 3rd Street and Davis Avenue on 

Rossignol Hill.  
• We would like to welcome our newest officers, Officer Raymundo Castillo-Chavez and Officer Tyler 

Jeffries, to our team.  
• On September 27th, Jeri Varnum was recognized at the Administrative Assistant of the Year for District 

6 by the Georgia Association of Chiefs of Police.  



1 
 

13, 
  
 
 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL DATE:  10/09/2023 
 
SUBJECT: Department of Public Works 
 
 
Report in Brief 
 
The Public Works Department Monthly Status Report includes an extensive summary of the 
monthly activity of all divisions within the Department.  This report also provides information 
regarding key projects and/or activities throughout the month. 
 
The operations detail contained in this report is for the month of September and all project 
related information is current as of 09/30/2023. 
 
 
 
     Prepared by: Lynnette S. Hymes 
     Title  Executive Administrative Assistant  
 
 
     Reviewed by: Virgil Moore 
     Title  Interim Public Works Director 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
C. Scott Robider, City Manager 
 
 
Attachment(s) 

                                                             Department of Public Works        

 
Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

 
 

REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 



2 
 

Public Works Department 
Monthly Status Report 

Summary – September 2023 
 

Operations & Maintenance: 
 
Public Works personnel completed 23 Resident Requests, and 261 Work Orders for the month 
of September.   

Resident Request – Every time a request for Public Works service is made by phone call, written 
request, email request, or an actual one-on-one request to a PW employee, a “Resident Request” is 
generated.  This builds a computerized record of all requests made.  

Work Order – A “work order” is created each time a work crew or individual is assigned a task either 
because of service requests, pre-planned maintenance projects, or by other situations as they arise.  
This produces a database of work accomplished and the time and materials it took to do the work. 

Storm Drainage: 
 
 Ditch/Canal Maintenance:  Dug – 1,708 ft., Cut – 13,926 ft. 

 
Streets: 
 
 Street Repairs – Patch hoe’s using 5 tons of Asphalt on Telfair Place and Telfair Road. Total Cost 

$599.00 
 

 Street Sweeper Mileage – 23.712 miles 
 

 Signs: Multiple Knockdowns/replacements – 8 
 

Mixed Dry Trash Collection by City and Disposal:  
 32.22 Tons Collected – July 2023 
 116.60 Tons Collected Total Mixed Dry Trash – YTD 
 Cost of Tons Collected Total Mixed Dry Trash July 2023 - $ 2,862.18 
 Cost of Tons Collected Total Mixed Dry Trash ($10,817.63) - YTD 
 116.60 Tons Collected YTD taken to Savannah Regional Landfill  

 
Trees:  Tree limbs removed around the city.  All work done by the Public Works Department. 



1 
 

 
  
 
 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL DATE:  10/09/2023 
 
SUBJECT: Water and Sewer Operations Monthly Status Report 
 
 
Report in Brief - 
 
The Water and Sewer Operations Department Monthly Status Report includes an extensive 
summary of the monthly activity of all divisions within the Department.  This report also 
provides information regarding key projects and/or activities throughout the month. 
 
The operations detail contained in this report is for the month of September and all project 
related information is current as of 09/30/2023. 
 
 
 
     Prepared by: Lynnette S. Hymes 
     Title  Executive Administrative Assistant  
 
 
     Reviewed by: Geunmarth Vallada 
     Title  Interim Director of Water and Sewer 
Operations 
 
 
____________________________ 
C. Scott Robider, City Manager 
 

 
Attachment(s) 
                                                                    Department of Water and Sewer Operations 

 
           
Domestic Violence Month 
 
 

REPORT TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 



2 
 

Water Operations & Maintenance: 
 
110 Service Orders, 45 Work Orders  
 
45.4 million Gallons of Drinking Water for the Month of September 2023 
 
Hydrant Services:  6 
 
Water Line Services: 40 
 
Located Services: 109 
 
Utility Services: 
 
 Meter Services: 37 
 Connects: 41 
 Disconnects: 45 
 Delinquent Disconnects: 79 

 
  

 
 
 
 
Sewer Operations and Maintenance: 
 
 Gravity Main/Manhole Services: 24 
 Lateral/Blockage Services:  0 
 Sanitary Sewer Overflow Event: 0  

 

Wastewater Treatment Plant and Water System: 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
• The treatment plant received a total of 2.2 inches of rain during the month and treated 29.1 

million gallons. 
• The max EFF daily flow for the treatment plant was 1.2 MGD recorded on September 6, 

2023. 
• The water system withdrew a total of 45.4 MG from well facilities and purchased 0.91 MG 

from the Savannah Southbridge System (Town Center Water System) and 0.30 MG from 
Savannah I&D (Prosperity Drive) 

• Monthly drinking water bacteriological sampling completed = passed 
• Monthly water and wastewater reporting submitted to State = no violations. 

∗ Maintenance Services consist of repairs made for leaks at the meter, register repairs, 
box or lid replacements, as well as, requested cleaning services for apartments. 
















































	Staff Report - WS Sept. 2023.pdf
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


